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] the break, you're welcome to do so. Tf M'sgÿgdoes not
2 want to speak to you, M's Gutierrez, obviously I can't
3 force her to.

Page 75
1 courtroom).

THE COURT: Now, Deputy Church, tf you would go
3 with them and stand by until -- thank you. Deputy Church
4 is going to go stand by the door and insure that they don't
5 leave. And if you would take Mr Sycd back.

vtR URICK: Your Honor, before you take him away,
7 I just bring to the court’s attention on the other matter
8 of a Tony Wilds, the witness, Jay Wilds, does have a
9 relative by that name. So, wc would request that you voir

10 dire the alternate.
THE COURT: Okay. I'll remember to do that
MR URiCR: Should we return at 3:307

2

MS. GUTIERREZ; I understand.4
THE COURT: But you can ask her if she would like

6 to speak to you. And I'm going to also ask that my jurors
7 come in because, ladies and gentlemen, we have kept them
8 locked in a room, and they don't know what's going on. So,
9 before we take the break, I’m going to ask the jurors to

10 come in. And then I'n» going to ask you to send Mr Sycd
1 1 back, and get Mr Fisher.

(Brief pause).
(The jurors returned to the courtroom).

THE COURT: You don't have to go all the way in
15 the box. If you will just come in for a moment, just come
16 in so 1 can sec everyone. Just come on in. Squeeze in so
17 1 can see everyone There's an old saying, the best laid
18 plans of mice and men. We have not been able to proceed
19 this morning because we have some preliminary matters that
20 wc have been taking up, and it's requiring a little more
21 time than we expected. Hence you’ve been locked in that

5
6

11
1212

THE COURT: Yes, 3:30 Give yourself a stretch13 13
14 Talk to M'sii|14

(The court took up an unrelated15
16 matter).

(Jury not present in courtroom upon17
18 resuming)

THE CLERK All rise.19
THE DEPUTY: Do you need the jury?
THE COURT t think we're going to need the jury,

20
21

22 room wondering what are we doing. And so I'm letting you 22 but we’re going to see. I'm not sure, Have a seat. Where
23 know that I'm going to ask that - wc do need some more 23 arc we m this case at this point? Are we going to he

24 calling another witness in the light of the court's -
MR. URICK Calling a new witness.

24 time We are going to get to you
What wc'rc going to do is have you go back, and 2525
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1 in a few moments Deputy Church is going to come back and
2 allow you, if you would like, to go get a cup of coffee,
3 stretch your legs, a cup of tea or whatever you need, and
4 bring it back to the jury room. And we will allow you to
5 do that. We are going to have you come out to hear some
6 testimony today, but it is just taking us a little while.
7 And I just wanted to let you know that we really are here,
8 and we really are working and trying to get to the point
9 where we can bring you all in, but it's taking us a little

10 longer than we expected.
If you will just bear with us, we're doing the

12 best we can. And at this time, I am going to ask you to go
13 back to the jury room. You can collect your coats, and
14 then the deputy will tell you when you can go out. You
15 might be able to catch the canteen even. It's 3:00
16 o'clock. They might still be there, to grab something
17 quick. Otherwise you will have to -- you're shaking your
18 head no. They're gone. All right.

In any event, you would have, when you go out,
20 you have until 3:30, thirty minutes, to stretch your legs,
21 walk around, and then come back All right Ladies and
22 gentlemen, thank you very much for your time and your
23 patience.

Page 76
THE COURT: A new witness?
MR. URICK: YeS.
THE COURT: All right. And that witness' name

1
2
3
4 is?

MR. URICK: Yaser5
THE COURT: Can you have Mr. Yasei6 come in.

7 and also Deputy Church, if you could go around and get our
8 jurors.

MS GUTIERREZ: Can I just seek clarification so
10 I don't spend any more energy? Does that mean we are
1 1 closed on the matter of Sharon Watts or does the State
12 intend to seek another opportunity?

THE COURT: Why don't you have a seat for a

9

11

13
14 second?

Do you want to tell tr.e?
MR. URICK: We will try to see if the statute is

15
16
17 Shepardized --

THE COURT: You will try again, You are going to
19 sec if you can come up with some law for me'’

MR. URICK: Yes.

18
19

20
THF. COURT Very well M’s Gutierrez, at this21

22 juncture --
MS GUTIERREZ Well, Judge, I at least will ask

24 that there be a limit on it
THE COURT Tomorrow morning at 9:00 o’clock. I’d

23
THE JURORS: Thank you.

(The jurors were excused from the
24

2525
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I He to meet with counsel to discuss this issue.

MS GUITERREZ: Can wc make it about ten after?
3 1 tan't drop my daughter off until ten of 9 00 in

4 Litherville.

1 the record.
22 THE WITNESS: Y-a-S-e-r,

THE CLERK And state your address for the3
4 record.

THE COURT: Actually, we don't even have to make
6 itihat close I'll do my case that I have set for 9:00
7 otlock. And the first matter we'll handle in the morning

8 vull be the issue of whether or not there will be an
9 otgoing, going back and forth on this issue.

MS GUTIERREZ: All right
THE COURT; Because I truly believe that defense

1 2 cajiiscl has the right to know whether one way or another
1 3 sh* should expect the testimony. So, if you have any cases
14 tbit you want to present. I'll see them or hear about them
15 tononow at 10.00 o’clock, because at 10:00 o'clock
16 tonorrow, I am going to make a final ruling for this case
17 wth the issue of M's Watts. 1 think the defense is
18 enitled to know one way or another whether that is

19 something that they need to prepare for
MS GUTIERREZ: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: All right The jury is on its way.

22 Aid while the jury is coming, when they all get in and sit
23 down, we need you to stand up and be sworn in Okay9 Just
24 hare a seat there.

5 5 THE WITNESS: |Ellicott City,
6 Maryland 21042.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY_MRÿURICIC

9 O Good afternoon, Mr,

10 A Good afternoon

7
8

10
11 Q Do you know the defendant?
12 A Yes.

11

13 Q How long have you known him?
14 A Seven or eight years.
15 Q How would you describe your relationship with the
16 defendant7
17 A He's a best friend

MR. URIC1C: If I may approach the witness at this18
19 time?

THE COURT: Yes, you may
(State's Exhibit Number 34, listing of

22 calls, marked for identification).
BY MR URICK:

Q Mr. Ali, 1 am now going to show you a copy of
25 what's been marked for identification purposes as State's

20 20
21 21

23
24

(Jurors present in courtroom).25
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THE COURT: Thank you, Mr White. See, we

2 aclually do lock them away, and no one reads them, and then 2
3 Mi White puts them back out your chair. Very well And
4 you may be seated as you reach your seats

Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, 1 want to thank
6 you for your time and your patience. We're going lo

7 proceed. As I had told you earlier in the week, we are
8 going to go till 5:30, and do you need a pencil or a pen?
9 Is that why I see a hand? Could you pass this -- if you

10 don't mind passing that down the line, Thank you.
Well, Mr White, in the pasl you're usually

12 pretty good about that, and this could be the one time, the
13 one time that you didn't get them exactly right

All right. Ladies and gentlemen, wc are going to
15 continue with this trial. Again, 1 want to thank you for
16 your time and your patience. And if you will raise your
17 right hand, sir, and listen to Mr. W7iite as he provides you
18 with the oath

1 Exhibit 34. Would you ever communicate with the defendant?1
A Yes.
Q What sort of phones did he have, if you know?
A What son of phones?
Q Yes.
A He had a cellphone
Q Do you remember its number7
A Not now. but at the time I'm sure 1 did know the

3
4
55
6
7
8
9 number.

1 0 Q Now, I’d like you to look at the top of this
1 1 sheel Do you see name of the service user-
12 A Yes.
13 Q •• for this cellphone number? Now, if you would.
1 4 starting at the top and going down, look at line 1 3.
15 A Uh-huh.
16 Q Have you found line 1 3?
17 A Yeah.
18 Q And there's a number beside, in the every next
19 row after the call. Number 13. Can you identify that
20 number?
2 1 A That number is my number
22 Q And when you say your number, is it a residence
23 number or a cellphone number?
24 A My cellphone number.
25 Q Would you read that for the record, please7

11

14

YASER
20 a witness produced on call of the Stale, after having been
2 1 first duly sworn, was examined and testified as follows:

THE CLERK: You may be seated. Please keep your
23 voice up, and state your name for the record

THE WITNESS. Yascrjj.
THE CLERK: Spell your first and last name for

19

22

24
25

Page 77 - Page 80



Condensclt! ™

Page 8 1 Page 83
l permission, on line 3 in the blank space. I'm going to
2 write in Yasctÿÿs cellphone.

THE COURT Any objection?
MS. GUTIERREZ: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: You may do that.

6 iY.MRÿURjCK:
7 Q Did you attend the same school as the defendant?
8 A No, I did not.
9 Q Where did you attend school?

10 A Centennial High School.
1 1 Q Where would you normally socialize or meet with
1 2 the defendant?
13 A At the Mosque or, if not, his house or my house.
14 Q Did know Hac Min Lee?
15 A Known her as Adnan's ex.
16 Q And how did you learn about her?
17 A Adnan had told me about her.
18 Q What did he tell you?
19 A That that was his girlfriend.
20 Q Did you ever personally meet her?
21 A Yes, I did.
22 Q When did that occur?
23 A It was in the summer. I'm not sure when. Maybe
24 in the middle, middle of the summer, July, about
25 Q Where did you --

call --
2 Q Did the •; I'm sorry. Did I cut you off? Were
3 you saying something else?
4 A I was going to read the call time.
5 Q Okay. The tune of the call was?
6 A 6:59 p.m.
7 Q And the duration?
8 A 27 seconds.
9 Q Do you see above, it says that these arc the

10 calls made on January 1 3th of 1999. Do you have any
11 independent recollection of receiving a call on your
12 cellphone at 6:50 --
13 A 9.
14 Q -- 9 on January 13th?
15 A No.
16 Q Do you have any independent recollection of where
17 you might have been at that time on January 1 3th?
18 A Yeah. Either home, either sleeping or doing
19 homework, or I could have been at the Mosque, going to the
20 Mosque.
21 Q What, if anything, would have been going on at
22 the Mosque at that time?
23 A There would be tarawee prayers.
24 Q And those are?
25 A And those are prayers that you do at the month of

1 A Sure. Number 13, 410-340-

3
4
5
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i Ramadan. l A - two years ago. The summer, not the past

2 summer, but the summer before.
3 Q And where did you come to meet her?
4 A 1 had met, we had gone out to eat. It was a
5 Chinese restaurant near Security Mall.
6 Q What is your understanding of the view of dating
7 in Islam?

MR. URICK: With the court’s permission, at this
3 time on Line 13 in the blank space. I'm going to write in
4 Yaserÿj's cellphone.

THE COURT Any objection, M's Gutierrez?
MR. GUTIERREZ: No, Your Honor.
BY MR. URICK:

8 Q What were the dates of Ramadan back in '98 and
9 '99 if you remember?

10 A It was during the winter, somewhere in December
1 1 and January.
12 Q Does it have a set number of days each year'.’
13 A 29 to 31 days.
14 Q Now, if you would, look at line 3.
15 A Uh-huh. Yes.
16 Q Have you found line 3?
17 A Yeah.
18 Q Do you recognize that number?
19 A Yeah, that's my number.
20 Q And will you read it for the record, again?
21 A 410-340
22 Q And what - yes. What time did it occur?
23 A 10:00, what time - yeah, 10:00 o'clock to 10:02,
24 44 seconds, and call duration was six seconds.

MR. URICK.: At this time, with the court's

2

5
6

MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection. There has been no
9 foundation laid.

THE COURT: Sustained as to the question as posed
1 1 at this juncture, but you may lay a foundation.

BY.MRÿURICK:
13 Q What religion do you practice?
14 A Islam.
15 Q And how long have you been practicing that?
16 A Ever since I could think properly and --
17 Q Ever since --
18 A - was wise enough to make any decisions.

THE COURT: I'm sorry? 1 could not hear what you
20 said. Ever since you?
21 A Were wise to enough make any decision.
22 Q And how would you describe your own practice of
23 the religion?
24 A I have strong faith in it, but I'm not, I don't
25 follow too much.

8

10

!2

19

Call time?

25
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Q Now, when you say ever since you were able to
2 make wise decisions, about what age would you be talking
3 about there?

A Ever since I had an understanding. I guess
5 around seven years old, eight years of age

Q And how have you studied Islam?
A Through Sunday School, parents.
Q Do you attend Sunday School regularly'’
A Yeah, when I was younger
Q Do you attend religious services regularly?
A Yeah.

THE COURT Certainly.
BY_MRÿyRFCKj.

3 Q You said that the defendant said his parents did
4 not accept his dating Did the defendant tell you how he
5 dealt with his parents concerning that issue?
6 A Yeah.
7 Q What did he do?
8 A He hid it.
9 Q Now, did you know Jay Wilds?

10 A I knew of him.

11
2

4

6
7
8
9

10
1 1 Q And how did you know of him?
12 A I heard him, you know, being talked about,
1 3 because a couple of my other friends are friends with him,
14 too, and I knew Adnan was friends with him
15 Q How did you know Adnan was friends with him?
16 A Because I've heard his name.
17 Q Did Adnan ever discuss Jay Wilds?
18 A No.
19 Q Did you ever meet Jay Wilds personally?
20 A I’ve met him. It was a while back though.
21 Q To your knowledge, did the defendant ever call
22 Jay Wilds?
23 A Like within my presence?
24 Q Either in your presence or say he called him
25 recently?

11
12 Q Do you observe religious occasions faithfully?
13 A Yes.
14 Q What is your understanding of the view of dating
15 within Islam?
16 A It's not agreed.
17 Q Can you explain what you meant by that?
18 A It's not allowed.
19 Q Did the defendant ever say anything to you about
20 how his parents viewed or might have viewed his dating Hae
21 Min Lee?
22 A Yeah.
23 Q What did he tell you?
24 A They didn't accept it.
25 Q Did that cause any problems for him?

Page 86 Page 88
A Yeah.
Q What were those?
A Just about how much he could sec her She wasn't

1 A No.
2 Q Did Jay Wilds ever call the defendant while the
3 defendant was in your presence?
4 A No.
5 Q Would Jay Wilds have ever called you?
6 A No.
7 Q Did the defendant ever tell you that his
8 relationship with Hae Min Lee had ended?
9 A Yeah.

10 Q Did he tell you why that --
1 1 A Yeah Just because it was being too much of a
12 problem for him hiding it from his parents. So, I mean, it
13 was like a kind of a mutual understanding that they
14 couldn't go on, because I believe Hae's parents didn't know
15 about the relationship either.
16 Q I would like you to look at line two on that
17 document. By any chance do you recognize that telephone
18 number?
19 A No.
20 Q How about line one?
21 A No.

1
2
3
4 allowed to call his house.
5 Q What is your understanding of the view in Islam
6 of premarital sex?
7 A It's prohibited.
8 Q Would members of the congregation discuss that
9 fact at Sunday School or at religious services?

10 A Yeah. There were a few that would.
1 1 Q Were you ever present when it was being discussed
1 2 and the defendant was there?
13 A I don't think I was.
14 Q Did you ever have occasion to ask him whether he
15 engaged in premarital sex?
16 A No, I never asked him,

17 Q Did he ever tell you whether or not he did?
18 A Yeah
19 Q And what did he tell you'*
20 A That he had.
21 Q Did he express any concerns about how that might
22 conflict with his religion?
23 A Um, I can't, really —MR. URICK. If I may have the court's indulgence
25 for just a second?

MR. URICK Witness with the defense.
CROSS_EXAMjNAHON_

iY.MSÿGUIIERREZ:
Q Mr Ali, you've been Adnan Syed's best friend for

22
23
2424
25

Page 85 - Page 88



 
   

 
         

        

 
      
 
       
 
         

 
 
        

         
      

 
       
 
        

           
 
         

       
 
 

 
          
 
        

        
   

 
       
 
           

       
  

         
    
     
             

          
   

  
             
          
 
     
             
  
  

 
   

     
       

  
         

        
      
  

             
          

  
        

 
  

              
           
          
       
  

         
 

 
          
 
          

 
  

       
       

         
  
     
           

       
  

          

          
     
  

             
       

    
     
            
  
  

    
 
        

          

      

    

Condenselt! ™
Page 89 Page 91

1 more than seven years?
2 A Yeah.
3 Q And that’s, you met him through the Mosque to
4 vhich both of your families belong. Is that correct?
5 A Correct.
6 Q That's the Islamic Society of Baltimore?
7 A Correct.
8 Q Located on Rolling Road in Baltimore County?
9 A Correct.

10 Q And that Society has a Mosque. The Mosque is a
i i physical space.
12 A Correct.
13 Q Is that right? And the physical space that's
14 cilled the Mosque is where prayer services arc heard or
15 people come to pray. Is that correct?
16 A Correct.

1 Q And their position.
2 A Correct.
3 Q And the direction in which they face.
4 A Correct.
5 Q So, a faithful Moslem is required to follow those
6 proscriptions whether or not they’re able to join with
7 fellow Moslems to do so Correct.
8 A Correct

Q And in Islam, in the Mosque, there are spaces
10 that are designated for men and women, are there not?

A Correct.
Q Okay. And those are followed through, are they

9

11
12
13 not?
14 A Correct.
15 Q And there is what you call the Sunday School, is
16 a school -- oh, in addition to the building that contains
17 the Mosque, there are other things contained in or around
18 and near the building, are there not?
19 A Correct.
20 Q There's a school now at that Mosque, ts there
21 not?

17 Q As a group, not just as individuals?
18 A Correct.
19 Q And according to Islam, the religion of Islam,
20 the faithful pray in a certain way five times a day?
2) A Correct.
22 Q And those times are prescribed by the Koran as
23 occurring at specific, designated times related to sunrise
24 and sunset?
25 A Correct.

A Correct.
Q It's a separate part of the building, correct’’
A Correct.
Q And now goes up, I believe, to fourth grade or

22
23
24
25
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Q During the high point of the sun in the day?
A Correct.
Q And there are proscriptions for how those who

4 follow Islam must follow in their praying, including their
5 position, their physical position?

A Correct.

1 fifth grade?
2 A Somewhere around there I'm not too sure.
3 Q Somewhere around there. And that that building,
4 that school functions as a regular certified school. Is
5 that correct?
6 A Correct.
7 Q And the children that go to that school are sons
8 and daughters of members of the Mosque.
9 A Correct

10 Q And, in addition, the Mosque has many places for
11 there to be activities for the young people of the
12 community. Isn't that correct?
13 A Correct.
14 Q There's lots of areas both inside and outside the
15 building that are designated for, encourage sports
16 activities, are there not?
17 A Correct.
1 8 Q There are baseball, I mean basketball courts. Is
19 that correct?
20 A Correct.
21 Q And fields of play?
22 A Correct.
23 Q And there are lots of activities that are
24 sponsored on a regular and seasonal basis that involve all

1 25 the young people of the Mosque._

1
2
3

6
7 Q And the direction in which they face?
8 A Correct.
9 Q And the words that they say to be the prayer that

10 they're required to recite. Is that correct?
11 A Correct.
12 Q And the Mosque is therefore open seven days a
13 week, is it not?
14 A Correct.
15 Q And many of the faithful members of the Mosque,
16 when they are able, actually come to the Mosque several
17 times a day.
18 A Correct.
19 Q If a faithful Moslem cannot get to the Mosque,
20 they are required to pray wherever ihey are. Is that
21 correct?
22 A Correct.
23 Q And to follow the proscriptions about the form of
24 the prayer.
25 A Correct.
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1 A Correct.
2 Q And, now, Sunday School, it's called Sunday
3 Sihool just because it happens to be held on Sunday,
4 correct?

1 correct.
2 A Correct.
3 Q And sometimes that could mean going to the Mosqu
4 once a day?
5 A Correct.
6 Q Okay. Not always, but it could, could it not?
7 A Yes.
8 Q Because there are always services at sundown and
9 then late at night. Is that correct?

10 A Yes.

5 A Correct.
6 Q And at the Sunday School, young people of
7 different ages are grouped together, are they not?
8 A Correct.
9 Q And during the Sunday School, they learn about

10 the tenets of Islam, do they not?
11 A Correct.
12 Q What beliefs are held?
13 A Correct.
14 Q And what behavior is expected?
15 A Correct.
16 Q And what are the correct and proper things for
17 Moslems practicing their faith are expected to do.
18 A Correct.
19 Q And how they are to behave.
20 A Correct.
21 Q Is that correct?
22 A Yes.
23 Q And one attends Sunday School on a regular basis
24 from about the age of seven or eight, correct ?
25 A Correct.

Q And in between those services, there are other
12 things that go on at the Mosque, are there not'.’ People
13 socialize?

A Yes.
Q People discuss their faith?
A Yes.
Q People discuss things other than their faith?
A Yes.

II

14
15
16
17
18

Q Sometimes there are speakers on certain aspects19
20 of Islam.
21 A Correct.
22 Q And on certain aspects of the culture?
23 A Correct.
24 Q Is the Mosque membership limited to those who
25 hold the Islamic faith, who are of Pakistani descent?

Page 94 Page Vo
1 Q All the way up to and through young adulthood.
2 Is that correct?
3 A Correct.
4 Q You don't attend it now?
5 A No.
6 Q Correct?
7 A Correct.
8 Q But up until the time you were in high school,
9 you attended Sunday School, did you not?

10 A Correct.
11 Q And you attended with other similarly aged young
12 Moslems.

1 A No.
2 Q There are those who are not of Pakistani descent,
3 whose families also belong to the Mosque.
4 A Correct.
5 Q The only criteria for membership is an embracing
6 of the Islamic faith. Is that correct?
7 A Correct.
8 Q In addition to Sunday School, there are
9 activities in the Mosque that are religious in nature that

10 involve the young people.
II A Yes.
12 Q Do they not? The specific, I don't quite
13 remember the name, but like young men’s groups, are there
14 not?
15 A Correct.
16 Q And the young men's groups receive a lot of
17 attention from the adults in the Mosque, who extend
18 themselves to try to talk about things with the young men.
19 A Correct.
20 Q And how their lives should be faced and dealt
21 with in the face of young Moslems living out in the world.
22 A Correct.
23 Q Among people who are not of the Islamic faith.
24 A Correct.
25 Q Who may not understand the tenets of Islam.

13 A Correct.
14 Q And Sunday School, was that divided into boys and
15 girls?

A At a younger age it wasn't, but at older age,
17 yeah, it was.

Q So, as girls and boys became or approached
19 teenagehood, they were separated by sex, were they not?

A Correct.
Q And that's part of the tenet of the Islamic

16

18

20
21
22 faith.
23 A Correct.
24 Q Is it not? And in addition to attending Sunday
25 School, you said you attended services regularly Is that
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1 A Correct.
2 Q And under circumstances where sometimes it is
3 lard to live up to what they are taught in regard to their
4 beliefs.
5 A Correct.
6 Q And in regard to their ability to interact with
7 non-Moslems they interact with by necessity, such as in
8 school. Is that correct?
9 A Correct.

10 Q And those groupings, the young men's group
1 1 sometimes meets in addition to the Sunday School?
12 A Correct.
13 Q And you participate in them, did you not?
14 A Correct.
15 Q And your best friend, Adnan, he participated in
1 6 them, did he not?
17 A Correct.
18 Q And he participated in Sunday School, did he not?
19 A Correct.
20 Q And in those groupings whenever the young men
21 would meet, one of the things that they would talk about,
22 whether it was from your own experience or just
23 intellectually, was how do young men of your age live your
24 lives around a culture whose beliefs do not coincide with

Q And you were clear, were you not - you, meaning
2 not just you, but Adnan and the other young men, that
3 of your parents would approve of dating.

I

none

4 A Yes.
5 Q Isn't that correct?
6 A Yes.
7 Q You got that from your parents?
8 A Yes
9 Q And you got that from all other adults in the

10 Mosque.
11 A Yes.
12 Q Regular Moslems --
13 A Correct.
14 Q -- and also specially trained ones.
15 A Correct.
16 Q Okay. Like specific teachers of Islam
17 A Correct.
18 Q And the writings of Islam, is that correct?
19 A Yes.
20 Q And that was reinforced a great deal, was it not'1
21 A Yes.
22 Q You, as a young person, and your best friend,
23 Adnan, as a young person, were encouraged to spend time and
24 become friends with each other, were you not?
25 A Yes.25 the beliefs of Islam. Isn't that correct?
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l A Correct.
2 Q The issue of dating, for instance, would be a
3 subject of discussion for you young men?
4 A Correct.
5 Q Within the Mosque.
6 A Correct.
7 Q With adults?
8 A Yeah.
9 Q And with each other.

10 A Yes.
11 Q Is that correct? And it would be talked about
12 regularly and continually. Is that correct?
13 A Yeah.
14 Q And you participated in those discussions, did
15 you not?
16 A Yes.
17 Q And Adnan participated in those discussions, did
18 he not?

1 Q And, in fact, many of you did so?
2 A Yes.
3 Q And you saw each other very regularly, sometimes
4 every day?
5 A Yes.
6 Q And sometimes seeing each other every day would
7 involve the two of you and others of like age praying
8 together?
9 A Yes.

10 Q And discussing tenets of faith?
11 A Yes.
12 Q And discussing things that had nothing to do with
13 being a Moslem.
14 A Yes.
15 Q Is that right? You were encouraged to spend as
16 much time as you could on the property and the grounds of
17 the Mosque, were you not?
18 A Yes.
19 Q And to engage in any activity that would be
20 offered to encourage you all to interact as much as
21 possible as members of the community. Is that correct?
22 A Yes.
23 Q And when you were on the property of the Mosque,
24 the adults of the Mosque would interact with all of you
25 Is that correct?

19 A Yes.
20 Q And there were never, there was never a dispute
2 1 that it was okay to date, right?
22 A Yes.
23 Q It was always understood by the young men that,
24 in fact, it was not okay to date, correct?
25 A Yes.
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Page 101 Page 103
l A Yes.
2 Q And that's mostly where you saw your best friend,
3 Adnan Syed?
4 A Correct.
5 Q Is that correct? Now, knowing that you both
6 understood that the tenets of your faith said that dating
7 ws wrong -- Correct?
8 A Correct.

1 A Correct.
2 Q That sort of signifies that this is a good union
3 that will go forward in the future.
4 A Correct.
5 Q And that a family will be raised within the
6 Moslem faith.
7 A Correct.
8 Q Within Islam, correct?
9 A Correct.

10 Q You were never told otherwise, were you?
11 A No.
12 Q And you never heard anybody else express
13 otherwise.
14 A No.
15 Q But you chose to date anyway
16 A Correct.
17 Q Did you tell your parents what you were doing?
18 A No.
19 Q Was it agreed among the young men that one way to
20 do that, to date girls, was to do it secretly?
21 A Correct.
22 Q And that that sort of cut down on the friction.
23 A Yes.
24 Q There was, however, on a regular basis friction
25 among your friends including Adnan, and any of their

9 Q There was never a time when anybody said, well,
10 its okay as long as somebody doesn't know it, right?
11 A Correct.
12 Q Nevertheless, it would be fair to say that most
13 young men in that Mosque dated, would it not?
14 A Yes.
15 Q You dated, didn't you?
16 A Yes.
17 Q Okay. And you still do, don't you?
18 A Here and there.
19 Q And do you tell your parents about it?
20 A No.
21 Q Do you tell the Emons (ph.) or the religious
22 leaders of the Mosque that that's what you're doing?
23 A No.
24 Q You know that it's wrong, don't you?
25 A Yes.

Page 102 Page 104
1 Q And you all tell each other, though, don’t you?
2 A Correct.
3 Q Okay. And that's okay, isn't it?
4 A Correct.
5 Q But there's never an illusion that you think that
6 it's okay to do it, is it?
7 A Correct.
8 Q You know that it's against the faith that you've
9 embraced.

10 A Correct.
11 Q Is that correct? And you know that your parents
12 would not approve of your dating.
13 A Correct.

I parents.
2 A No.
3 Q About dating.
4 A Oh! Yeah.
5 Q Only about dating, is that correct?
6 A About dating.
7 Q And that periodically parents would get, like any
8 parents, who saw a child go against the tenets of their
9 faith, upset with their children.

10 A Correct.
11 Q Did your parents ever find out that you’ve dated
12 in the past?
13 A Um, they've got an inkling.
14 Q They've got an inkling, but you're pretty good at
15 hiding it?
16 A Kind of.
17 Q Okay. And have a cellphone, do you not?
18 A Correct.

14 Q Any girl, right?
15 A Correct.
16 Q No matter what faith she is, right?
17 A Correct.
18 Q The ban on dating is that young people shouldn't
19 have any relationship with each other, of the opposite sex,
20 until they're ready to make a commitment to a marriage and
21 a union within the faith, correct?
22 A Correct.
23 Q Is that correct, then, that mating, marriage
24 should be a family affair that involves approval from both
25 families?

19 Q That sort of makes talking to the girls outside
20 this span a whole lot easier, doesn't it?
21 A Yes.
22 Q Don't most of the young men of the Mosque have
23 cellphones?
24 A Yes.
25 Q And is not the main reason for cellphones, is
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Page 105
I hit it makes communicating with girls of whatever faith
2 far easier than if the girls had to call at the home where
3 a parent might answer?
4 A Yes.
5 Q The ban on premarital sex - well, you understood
6 vhen Adnan became interested in a girl.
7 A Yes.
8 Q He told you about it?
9 A Yes.

10 Q You were his best friend.
11 A Yes.
12 Q He didn't hide it from you.
13 A Yes.
14 Q You understood, though, that he was hiding it
1 5 from his parents?
16 A Yes.
17 Q And from other adult members of the Mosque. Is
18 that right?
19 A Correct.
20 Q And you, of course, wouldn't break faith with
21 him, would you?
22 A No.
23 Q Did you chastise him for going against his faith?
24 A No.
25 Q Did you remind him, and say. Best Friend, you

Page 107
1 considered themselves faithful Moslems?
2 A Yes.
3 Q And even though they were counseled all the time
4 to not break the ban.
5 A Correct.
6 Q Is that correct? And, sir, you were asked about
7 Ramadan. That's the holy month for the Islamic faith, is
8 it not?
9 A Yes.

10 Q It runs, according to a calendar, and generally
1 1 it falls from about the middle of December to the middle of
12 January.
13 A Yes.
14 Q But it runs according to a calendar so the
1 5 starting date and ending date might end or begin on a
16 slightly different date each year. Is that correct?
17 A Yeah.
18 Q Last year's Ramadan, which in the Ramadan and
19 Islamic calendar, that wasn’t the year 1998 or 1999, right?
20 A Yes
21 Q It's a different year.
22 A Yes.
23 Q Is that correct? According to the Arabic Islamic
24 calendar, is that correct?
25 A Correct.

Page 106 Page 108
1 know, you're not supposed to do that?
2 A No.
3 Q Did you ever advise him not to do it?
4 A No.
5 Q Did you ever tell anybody?
6 A No.
7 Q Did you help him hide it?
8 A No.
9 Q Were you ever asked to help him hide it?

10 A No.
1 1 Q Did you understood -- did you understand from
1 2 your conversations with him that he continually had to hid
13 it all the time?
14 A Yes.
15 Q Okay. And was that a problem for you?
16 A No.
17 Q To your knowledge, were you and Adnan the only
18 young men of the Mosque who broke the ban on dating?
19 A No.
20 Q And was it more ordinary that the young men would
21 actually be dating than they would not be?
22 A More.

1 Q And in Ramadan, one of the things that happens
2 for the faithful of Islam is that they are called to pray
3 more often.
4 A Correct.
5 Q And to make special prayers.
6 A Correct.
7 Q And to fast from sunup till sundown every day for
8 the whole fasting month. Is that correct?
9 A Correct

10 Q And the fasting is meant as discipline, is it
II not?
12 A Correct.
13 Q And it's to remind the faithful and to bring them
14 together more often to try to make their covenant with
15 faith deeper. Is that correct?
16 A Correct.
17 Q And during that month, the Mosque plans special
18 activities, does it not?
19 A Yes.
20 Q And one of the activities that it plans around
21 the Mosque are opportunities for the young people to lead
22 prayers.
23 A Correct.
24 Q Special prayers, is that correct?
25 A Correct.

Q More?
A A lot of them dated.
Q Oh! A lot of young men dated even though they

23
24
25
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Page 109
l Q That happens several times a month, does it not?
2 A Correct.
3 Q Last year the ending date of Ramadan, I believe,
4 vas the 17th of January, was it not?
5 A Somewhere around that date.
6 Q Somewhere around then?
7 A Yes.
8 Q And do you recall, sir, that on the 14th of
9 January, which was a Thursday, that there was a special

10 prayer that was led by a group of young people?
1 1 A There was a prayer led, yeah.
12 Q And do you recall that your best friend, Adnan
1 3 Syed, participated in that prayer?
14 A Yes, he did lead a prayer.
15 Q He led the prayer. And leading the prayer is a,
16 I don't the right word. It's a great honor, is it not?
17 A Yes.
18 Q And the young people practice to make sure that
19 they lead the prayer correct.
20 A Correct.
21 Q It's not just memorizing the prayer, is it?
22 A Correct.
23 Q It’s understanding the prayer, is it not?
24 A Yes.
25 Q And leading the people with fervor and passion,

Page 1 1 1
1 late April of 1998, did it not?
2 A Yes.
3 Q You were aware that he took her to his junior
4 prom.
5 A Yes.
6 Q And prior to then, even though you didn't attend
7 the same school, you had interacted with and met some of
8 his friends from his public school, had you not''
9 A No, I really never met his other friends.

10 Q Okay. Had you ever met Stephanie'’
11 A I had met her at a mall once.
1 2 Q Okay. And you had heard her name often, had you
13 not?
14 A Yes.
15 Q And she was a non-Moslem.
16 A Correct.
17 Q And she was an African-American?
18 A Correct.
19 Q Not an Asian, not a Pakistani, correct'’
20 A Correct.
21 Q You were aware for a long period of lime that
22 Stephanie, a girl, and Adnan were best friends -
23 A Correct.
24 Q — in their school, correct?
25 A Correct.

Page 1 10 Page 1 1 <.

1 Q You knew that because you were his Mosque best
2 friend, correct?
3 A Yes.
4 Q And that kind of relationship, they weren't
5 girlfriend and boyfriend, just friends, that was okay, was
6 it not?
7 A Yes.
8 Q And young people were allowed to socialize in
9 groups, not in couples, correct?

10 A Correct.
11 Q And they were allowed to socialize as long as
12 there was nothing of a sexual or intimate nature going on
13 with members of the opposite sex, were they not?
14 A Correct.
15 Q The ban was on dating, right?
16 A Correct.
17 Q And then there was the ban on any type of
18 premarital sex, correct?
19 A Correct.
20 Q Because within Islam, sex is reserved for married
21 couples with a commitment to establishing an Islamic
22 family.
23 A Correct.
24 Q Correct? But socializing with members of the
25 opposite sex was not banned in any way.

I isn't that correct?
2 A Yes.
3 Q And you young people, when you're asked to do
4 that, you practice, do you not?
5 A Yes.
6 Q During Ramadan, not just because it's required by
7 Islam, but because it's encouraged by the community, the
8 young people are at church more often than at any other
9 time.

10 A Correct.
1 1 Q Isn't that correct? Both praying and meeting,
12 isn't that correct?
13 A Yes.
14 Q Just like the rest of the members of the
15 community are at the Mosque more often, is that correct?
16 A Yes.
17 Q And, sir, do you recall that during that time
18 like other Ramadans, you sec your best friend more often at
19 the Mosque than at any other time?
20 A Yes.
21 Q Now, you became aware when he acquired a
22 relationship or initiated or had a relationship with this
23 young woman by the name of Hae Min Lee?
24 A Yes.
25 Q And that occurred sometime in the spring of 1998,
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Page 113 Page 1 1 5
A Um —Q As long as it was under certain circumstances —
A Yeah.
Q - where there wasn't any sex or any intimacy,

THE WITNESS: It was by the Security Mall.
THE COURT: Okay.
BY MS. GUTIERREZ:

4 Q Okay. Not inside but nearby there.
5 A Yes.
6 Q Was there any hiding of the relationship from
7 Adnan? Did he hide the relationship to you?
8 A When we were at the restaurant, 1 mean, we
9 weren't hiding, or he wasn't hiding because there was

10 one around.
1 1 Q Okay. But to you?
12 A Was he hiding that he was going out?
13 Q Yes.
14 A No.
15 Q Did he present her to you as his girlfriend?
16 A Yes.

Il
22
33

4

5 tight?
6 A Correct.
7 Q So, groups of young people that included boys and
8 grls, that was okay
9 A Correct.

10 Q Is that right, as long as people didn't pair off?
1 1 A Yes.
12 Q You know other young people in the Mosque who
13 atend your school?
14 A Um —
15 Q Are there any that attend your school? It's
16 aitually in Columbia, is it?
17 A Ellicott City.
18 Q In Ellicott City. Are there any members of your
19 school who are also members of the Mosque'?
20 A No.
21 Q Are there any members of the Mosque that come
22 tram schools other than Woodlawn?
23 A Yes.
24 Q And as among those young people, are the
25 practices the same that, at least the young men you know,

no

17 Q And when you met her, did you know that the two
18 of them had engaged in premarital sex?
19 A I don't know if I was aware at that time.
20 Q At some point --
21 A Yes.
22 Q -- you did become aware Is that correct?
23 A Yes. Correct.
24 Q And that's because your best friend, Adnan. told
25 you that that's what he did?

Page 1 1 4 Page 1 1 6
1 A Correct.
2 Q And so the hiding never included him hiding the
3 nature of this relationship with this young woman to you?
4 A Yes.
5 Q And she didn't hide the nature of the
6 relationship while you were with her at the Chinese
7 Restaurant, did she?
8 A Yes. She didn't hide it.
9 Q They presented themselves to the world as

10 girlfriend and boyfriend, did they not?
1 1 A Yeah.
1 2 Q And for a long time you were aware that they were
13 still girlfriend and boyfriend.
14 A Correct.

I that they date?
2 A Yes.
3 Q Okay. And is the practice the same as you've
4 described, that more of them date?
5 A Yes.
6 Q Than don't date?
7 A Yes.
8 Q And would it be fair to say that in order to
9 maintain it, that all of those young men from the Mosque,

1 0 who date against the ban on dating, do so having to hid it
1 1 from everybody?
12 A Correct.
13 Q Or at least adults.
14 A Yeah.
15 Q Okay. And would it be fair to say that they
16 don't hide it from each other?
17 A Yeah
18 Q Okay. It was in the summer that you met Hae Min
19 Lee when the three of you went to a Chinese restaurant in

20 Security Mall.
2 1 A Yes.
22 Q Is that correct?
23 A Yes, it was by there
24 Q Was there any hiding of —

THE COURT: What was that? I'm sorry.

15 Q You were aware that the hiding exacted a loll on
16 Adnan, were you not?
17 A Yes.
18 Q That it bothered him to have to go against his
19 parents.
20 A Yes.
21 Q And that it bothered him that they were pained by
22 it.
23 A Yes.
24 Q And that it bothered him to go against his faith.
25 A Correct.25
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Page 117
l Q And you were also aware that the young lady, Hae
2 Min Lee, was hiding their relationship from her parents.
3 A Correct.
4 Q And you were aware from your conversations with
5 Ainan that that bothered her, too.
6 A Correct.
7 Q You were aware that the two of them discussed at
8 length the issues of their loving each other.
9 A Correct.

10 Q And he told you that he loved her, did he not?
11 A Urn, he liked her a lot, but I don't think he
12 loved her.
13 Q He liked her a lot. He felt very strongly about
14 the relationship, did he not?
15 A Yes.
16 Q Even though it caused him pain?
17 A Yes.
18 Q You were aware that what things that caused him
19 piin were issues that he and Hae discussed a lot.
20 A Yes.
21 Q And that their pain time starting in the summer
22 when they took breaks from each other.
23 A Yes.
24 Q To try to see how strong their love was or their
25 like.

Page 1 19
l A Correct.
2 Q And is that that because he told you about it?
3 A Yes.
4 Q And did he tell you that when his parents came.
5 his mother asked to speak to Hae Min Lee'’
6 A Um, I —7 Q He didn't get into all the details?
8 A Yeah.
9 Q Did you understand from what he told you that he

10 left willingly with his parents?
11 A Yes.
12 Q And did you understand from what he told you that
13 as soon as he got home, shortly thereafter he snuck out and
14 bicycled his way back?
15 A Um, I believe he did.
16 Q And that he finished the dance with Hae Min Lee?
17 A Yeah
18 Q Who waited there for him to return0
19 A Yes.
20 Q Did you understand from your conversations with
21 him that he did that to try to spare his parents some of
22 the pain?
23 A Yes.
24 Q To not mb their noses into the relationship that
25 he had chosen to commit some of his energy to?

Page 118 Page law
1 A Yes.
2 Q To try to test the relationship as young people.
3 A Yes.
4 Q And your friend, Adnan, was just past 17 then?
5 A Yes.
6 Q And you are how old?
7 A I’m 18.
8 Q So, a year ago, you were also 17?
9 A Correct.

10 Q And by then you became aware that there then
1 1 became a pattern where they were together, and then they
12 would break up for a little while.
13 A Correct.
14 Q Now, you don't attend Woodlawn, correct?
15 A Correct.
16 Q And so you would not have ordinarily attended
17 school dances.
18 A No.
19 Q You didn't attend the junior prom.
20 A No.
21 Q And you didn't attend the Homecoming Dance, did
22 you?
23 A No.
24 Q Did you become aware that Adnan 's parents went to
25 retrieve him from the Homecoming Dance?_

1 A Correct.
2 Q In mid-December did you become aware that he and
3 Hae Min Lee mutually broke up?
4 A Yes.
5 Q And that they both then began to live different
6 lives?
7 A Correct.
8 Q Did you understand that it had nothing to do with
9 Adnan 's decision-making, whether it was right or wrong

10 under any analysis, as to whether or not to engage in a
11 relationship, but that he and her, Hae, were unwilling to
12 continue to go through the pain caused by hiding from both
13 sets of families?
14 A Correct.
15 Q Did you understand from him that Hae Min Lee also
16 hid her relationship with him, Adnan, from her family?
17 A Correct.
18 Q Okay. And after, did you learn all this from
19 Adnan?

A Yeah.
Q Okay. You never independently talked to Hae?
A No.
Q After the break-up, after mid-December, were you

24 aware that Adnan was interested in other girls?
A Yeah.

20
21
22
23

25
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Page 121 Page 123
Q How did you know that?
A He had talked about other girls.
Q Okay And, in fact, he went to other places, did

1 Q That he told you these things?
2 A Oh, no, no.
3 Q You shared similar things about yourself with
4 him?
5 A Correct
6 Q Okay. As most best friends do.
7 A Correct.
8 Q And you became aware that - you understood he
9 cared about Hae, did you not9

10 A Yes.
11 Q He made you aware that the decision to break up
1 2 was a mutual one?
13 A Yes.
14 Q He was pained by it, was he not?
1 5 A Yes.
16 Q He was committed, however, to remaining friends
1 7 with Hae Min Lee?

1
2
J
4 he not?
5 A Yes.
6 Q Places that the purpose of going there, there
7 would be girls there.
8 A Correct.
9 Q Is that right?

10 A Correct.
1 1 Q You and he went to some, did you not?
12 A Um, we had gone to some.
13 Q Okay. And were you aware that he was responding
14 to other girls by the turn of the year, at New Year’s?
15 A I wasn't with him on New Year's.
16 Q You were not with him on New Year's?
17 A Yeah.
18 Q Or New Year's Eve?
19 A Yeah.
20 Q Were you aware that he attended a big party at
21 Scarlett Place?
22 A Yeah.
23 Q And were you aware in advance that that party was
24 going to happen?
25 A Yeah.

A Yes.
Q And to your knowledge did he continue to do so?
A Yes.
Q Okay. Now, you to told us, Mr. .jg. that you

22 have no recollection of phone calls that you've been asked
23 to identify the numbers of. Is that right?

A Yes
Q The first time that you were asked to recall any

J8
19
20
21

24
25

Page 122
1 Q That party was not restricted to Moslem youth,
2 was it?
3 A No.
4 Q There were youth of every faith?
5 A Yes.
6 Q And every race?
7 A Yes.
8 Q And from all comers of Maryland.
9 A Yes.

10 Q And were you aware that he met a girl he was
1 1 interested in pursuing?
12 A Yes.
13 Q And that there were other girls that he was
14 interested in pursuing.
15 A Yes.
16 Q You were aware that Hac Min Lee was his very
17 first dating experience, were you not?
18 A Yes.
19 Q And that haying premarital sex with her was his
20 very first sexual experience.
21 A Yes.
22 Q And he told you that, did he not?
23 A Yes.
24 Q And you weren't surprised by that, were you?
25 A Um -

Page 124
1 phone conversation, did that occur near January 13th?
2 A Yeah, I'm guessing so, because it says these
3 calls were made on January 13th.
4 Q That's what the paper tells you, right?
5 A Yes.
6 Q But you don’t know that?
7 A Yeah
8 Q Did somebody ask you on the 14th, the day after,
9 did you make this phone call?

10 A No.
11 Q And it was months before you were asked to
1 2 identify your number, was it not?
1 3 A Yes.
1 4 Q The police came to speak to you because your
1 5 number appeared here. Is that correct?
16 A Yes.
17 Q Of your cellphone number, is that correct?
18 A Correct.
19 Q That you had and used for a similar reason, that
20 is to facilitate communication with girls, correct'’
21 A Correct.
22 Q Now, to your knowledge, Miÿÿi, you were not the
23 only person with Adnan Syed's cellphone number, were you?
24 A Correct. I wasn't the only person.
25 Q No. You knew that others, your mutual friends
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Page 125 Page 127
Q And someone can leave a message for you that you

2 can later retrieve.
3 A Yes.
4 Q And you have no independent recollection of
5 speaking to him on that day?
6 A Yes.
7 Q You were aware back then, in January, that your
8 best friend, Adnan Syed, was a member of the track team of
9 Woodlawn Senior High, were you not?

10 A Correct.
1 1 Q And that he attended track practice in January
1 2 every day
13 A Correct.
14 Q At Woodlawn.
15 A Correct
16 Q And you were aware, as his best friend, that in
17 February and earlier in January that, in fact, at track
18 meets representing his school, that he won gold medals in
19 the races he ran9
20 A Correct.
21 Q He was a good track runner, was he not?
22 A Yes
23 Q He was disciplined about what he did, was he not9
24 A Yes.
25 Q He was proud of his achievements, was he not?

1 fom the Mosque, had his cellphone number.
2 A Yes.
3 Q Did you not?
4 A Correct.
5 Q And that was a regular way for you all to
6 ecmmunicate, correct?
7 A Correct.
8 Q The first cellphone call that you were asked to
9 identify. Number 13, sir, that lasted 27 seconds. Is that

10 correct?

I

11 A Correct.
12 Q You don't recall speaking to Adnan
13 A No. Sometimes when you call, when you're on the
14 phone, when the bell is ringing, that's also --
15 Q Okay. So, this 27 seconds phone call could have
16 been to your number but you never actually spoke to him.
17 A Correct.
18 Q Is that correct?
19 A Correct.
20 Q His cellphone could have been used by somebody
21 elte.
22 A Correct.
23 Q And you have no recollection of actually speaking
24 to him9
25 A Correct.

Page 126 Page 12a
1 Q Or where you were whenever it is he called?
2 A Correct.
3 Q And the six-second phone call, you also have no
4 recollection of.

1 A Yes.
2 Q And you knew that from talking to him?
3 A Yes.
4 Q And you also knew that from talking - there were
5 other Moslem young men. who were members of the Mosque, who
6 also attended Woodlawn?
7 A Correct.
8 Q So, you got information about your best friend
9 corroborated and verified by others who also knew from

10 their own personal knowledge.
1 1 A Correct.
12 Q And you never heard from any of those members
13 anything that contradicted anything that Adnan told you
14 about his relationship with Hae.
15 A No.
16 Q Or about his commitment to track.
17 A No.
18 Q You knew, in fact --

THE REPORTER: Keep your voice up.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
BY_MS_GUIIERR£Z:

22 Q You knew, in fact, that be was a good student.
23 did you not?
24 A Yes, I did.
25 Q And other information corroborated that to you.

5 A Correct.
6 Q And the six-second call to your number could have
7 been one in which you never even got to answer.
8 A Correct.
9 Q A place where you didn't have your cellphone on,

10 bui it was ringing.
11 A Correct.
12 Q And it wasn't answered.
13 A Correct.
14 Q Or when you were on the phone doing something
15 else.
16 A Correct.
17 Q Then you also don't remember9
18 A Correct.
19 Q But, again, it wasn't answered ai all?
20 A Correct.
21 Q Do you have a voice mail on your cellphone9
22 A Yes, I do.
23 Q So, if somebody is not able to reach you or you
24 are busy on the phone, it then skirts over9
25 A Yeah.

19
20
21
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1 dd it not?
2 A Yes.
3 Q You've answered my question, that you
4 hive previously had girlfriends?
5 A Yes.
6 Q And you currently have a girlfriend?
7 A No.
8 Q Do you engage in premarital sex?
9 A No.

1 A Urn, that he was not that good of a person.
2 Q Okay. And dial's the information that was
3 conveyed to you from more than one source, was it not?
4 A Yeah
5 Q It was conveyed to you that one of the reasons
6 dial Jay Wilds was known to several of these young people
7 who were Moslems, was because lie readily and easily
8 provided dope for them
9 A Yeah.

10 Q And using any kind of dope, in any form, is also
1 1 against the Islamic faith, is it not?

12 Q And have you - is that because of your Islamic 12 A Yes
1 3 Q Using anything to desecrate the body, including

I 14 alcohol is against the Islamic faith, is it not1
|, condemn your friend because he IS A Correct.

16 Q Many of the young men. however, on occasion

17 imbibe and drink alcohol, do they not?
18 A Correct
19 Q And attend parties where alcohol is served.
20 correct?
21 A Correct.
22 Q Even though that's in violation of their latth
23 A Correct.
24 Q Is that correct? And many of the young Moslem
25 men have also bocn known on occasion to smoke marijuana, to

10 Q Have you ever?
1 1 A No.

13 faith?
14 A Urn, no.
15 Q Did you, M|_
16 violated his Islamic tenets of faith?
17 A No.
1 8 Q Did you encourage him not to have sex once he
19 told you he was?
20 A No.
21 Q Did he tell you, and did you ever know, where he
22 and Hae had sex?
23 A No.
24 Q And did you inquire of him those details?
25 A No.

Page 130 Page 132
I Q Were you shocked by Adnan's confession to you?
2 A Just kind of, that we’re all growing up That's
3 ahout it.
4 Q You're growing up. Deciding, having the
5 wherewithal to make a decision --

1 smoke dope?
2 A Correct.
3 Q Even though that also is not only a violation of
4 American law, and the law of this State, but a violation of
5 Islamic tenets. Is that correct?
6 A Yes.6 A Yes.

7 Q -- as to whether or not you would have sex or not
8 was a sign in and of itself of the fact that you were
9 getting older.

10 A Correct.
1 1 Q And more mature.
12 A Correct,

13 Q One of the main tenets of Islamic faith is that
14 it leaves individuals, to use one of the words that you
15 used in the beginning, the freedom to make their own wise
16 choices.
17 A Yes.
18 Q And that's in spite of the tenets that might
19 encourage them to make other choices.
20 A Correct.
21 Q Is that correct? And that's the Islamic faith
22 and practice of it that you know, is it nof>
23 A Yes.
24 Q The Jay Wilds that you heard of, did you know any
25 personal information about him?

7 Q But on occasion some Moslem young people arc
8 known to have imbibed in that.
9 A Yes.

1 0 Q And the things that you had heard led you to
1 1 understand that Jay Wilds in regard to the young Moslems at
12 Wooalawn was the person that they went to, to supply them
1 3 things that they didn't know how to get.
14 A Correct.
15 Q Like marijuana?
16 A Correct.
17 Q Like other forms of drugs?
18 A Correct.
19 Q And like alcohol?
20 A Correct.
21 Q You never interacted with Jay Wilds.
22 A No.
23 Q And what you heard mostly about him was that he
24 was not a good person.
25 A Correct.
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Page 133 Page 135

MS. GUTIERREZ: No further questions. Thank you, 1 relevance and prejudice
THE COURT: I think you've opened the defendant's

I
2 Nrl Ali. 2

THE COURT: Any re-direct?
MR. URICK Yes Thank you.

RE DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR URICK:

7 Q And you've heard tire defendant call Jay Wilds a
8 frind, haven't you?
9 A Um, I might have, yeah.

10 Q Are you aware of whether or not the defendant
1 1 snakes marijuana?
12 A Um, yes.

3 character, opened wide by the questions on cross You
4 ask the question.

3 car
4

(Counsel and defendant returned to trial55
6 tables).6

THE COURT t ask it to be a little more specific
8 and direct the witness

BYJdRJJRJCK:
10 Q What, if anything, was going on at Ttab's house
1 1 at that occasion?

THE COURT: That's not specific enough. So, why
13 don't we just go right to the chase M's Gutierrez was
14 asking a lot of questions about marijuana The question
15 is, at Mr. Tiab's --

MR URICK: Tiab
MS. GUTIERREZ Tiab.
THE COURT: -Tiab's house, did you ever see the

19 defendant smoking marijuana?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
THE COURT: Next question.
BY_MR;_yiyCKi

23 Q Were you aware that before he was dating Hae Min
24 Lee, the defendant had a relationship with a woman with a
25 six-year old child?

7

9

12
MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection.
THE COURT Overruled

13
14

BY_MRÿ_URICK:
Q You can answer that question
A Yes.
Q How are you aware of that9
A 1 had heard about it.
Q Do you have a friend named Tiab?
A Who?
Q Tiab. I'm not certain that the spelling is

23 coirect, T-i-a-b. Tiab. Tiab
A Oh, Tiab. Yeah.
Q Have you ever seen the defendant at Tiab's house?

15
16 16

1717
1818

19
2020
2121
2222

24
25

Page 134 Page
MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled. Did you know of a prior

3 relationship of the defendant involving a six-year old
4 child and woman who had a six-year old child?

A Yes.
Q What, if anything, did you see him do there9

MS. GUTIERREZ Objection.
THE COURT Sustained. Are you going to lay a

5 fouidation, so I'll know where you're going with this
MR URICK What was going on at --
THE COURT What, if anything, did you ever see

8 hin do there. 1 have at that point no idea where you're
9 goisg with it. Some of which he may have been doing is

10 admissible, and some of which is totally irrelevant So,
1 1 if you would just give me a foundation or you can come to
12 thebench and proffer where you're going.

MR URICK: Sure.
THE COURT: Come on up

(Counsel and defendant approached the bench,
16 and the following ensued:)

THE COURT: Okay.
MR. URICK I’ll proffer that the witness saw the

19 defendant smoking marijuana at that place
THE COURT: Okay. And what relevance does that

2 1 have to do with the charges?
MR. URICK It's a follow-up to the other

1I
22

3
4

THE WITNESS No
THE COURT: Next question.
THE REPORTER: Speak up
THE WITNESS: No.

5
66
77
8

BY MR. URICK:
10 Q When was it your understanding that the defendant
11 started dating Hae Mm Lee?
12 A Um, it was during my junior year, during the prom
13 time, which is late spring, I guess.
14 Q And what is your understanding as to the time
15 that they broke up?
16 A Last year, and during the winter, but they had
17 previous break-ups.
18 Q If you recall, when did the defendant get his
19 cellphone?
20 A During the wintertime.
21 Q And how did you come to know that he had gotten a
22 cellphone?
23 A He had called me and told me when he was giving
24 his new number.
25 Q And how often would he call you on a -- say

9

13
14
15

17
18

20

22
23 questions.

THE COURT: Okay.
MS. GUTIERREZ: I'm going to object based on

24
25
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Page 137
1 through the month of January, how often would he call you
2 oni daily basis?

A Here and there, just about as much as any other
4 peson, not like continuous, you know, every hour or
5 anjthing. Just like once maybe every day, once every two
6 dajs, something like that.

Q Now, on January 1 3th, you mentioned a name for a
8 pnyer. What was that name again'?

A Tarawee, but that's every night during Ramadan.
Q When does the Mosque open for that?
A The Mosque ts open all day.
Q When would those prayers begin for -- or what

13 woild be the routine for someone who is observing those?
A It would be around 7:30. They would start

13 aromd 7:30.
5 And what would someone do?
A Just go there and pray.
5 And describe physically how they would do this.
A It's like a regular prayer, and they would have

20 to <b it for about two and a half hours, two or three
21 hous. Just like regular praying, but you do them in sets
22 of tvo, about 20.

? And what sort of physical positions would people

Page 139
1 Q About how tall are you?
2 A Five foot seven.
3 Q And how tall is the defendant in relation to you?
4 A About three inches taller, six, five-eleven, six,
5 around there.

3

6 Q Are you aware of any jobs the defendant ever had?
7 A Yeah.

MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled
iY_MRÿURICKi

11 Q How was he employed?
12 A He had done telemarketing, and he had also done
13 emergency medical technician.
14 Q And how long had he done that?
15 A I think about a couple of months. I’m not too
16 sure how long.
17 Q Were you aware of how Adnan's actual, own parents
18 felt about his, the possibility of him just socializing
19 with females?

7
8
99

1010
11
12

14

16
17
18
19

MS. GUTIERREZ: l'm sorry. I missed the last
21 part of the question.

THE COURT: Please repeat your last question.
BY MR. URICK:

24 Q Were you aware of the defendant's parents' views
25 of the possibility of him just merely socializing with

20

22
23 23
24 be m?
25 A The normal routine of prayers.

Page 138 Page 140
1 Q Could you describe that, please?
2 A Sure. First you start off holding your hands.
3 Then you go down, bending over, and then you go down,
4 kneding on the ground, and then you get back up and do
5 thatagain for how many ever, regardless of how many times
6 youhave to do it for.
7 Q And that particular set of prayers during Ramadan
8 would take about two and a half hours to complete?
9 A Yeah, around that time.

10 Q Would everybody be doing this in the same room?
11 > Yeah.

1 females?
2 A Um, I didn't think they agreed.
3 Q So, for the defendant, it would not have been
4 okay to be with a large group of friends that included
5 females?

A It depends what they're -- it depends on what
7 they were doing.

Q Say, if they got together after school.
A Not really.
Q Did there ever come a time when the defendant was

11 the subject of a sermon at the Mosque?
MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection.
THE COURT: rll allow the question if you can

14 put a timeframe on it.
BY MR. URICK:

Q During the time that the defendant was dating Hae"
17 Min Lee, did there ever come a time when there was a sermon
18 at the Mosque when the defendant was the subject of it?

A No.

6

8
9

10

12 <) Would anyone be interrupting their prayer to use
13 theii cellphone?
14 A No.
15 Q Would anybody be answering their cellphone while
16 theywere doing their prayers?
17 A No.
18 Q Now, what was your understanding of the
19 defendant's athletic ability?
20 A Excuse me?
21 Q What is your understanding of the defendant's
22 athletic ability?
23 A He's a good runner.
24 Q How would you describe his strength?
25 A I just knew him as stronger than me.

12
13

15
16

19
MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.
BY.MRÿURICIC

23 Q In terms of his relationship with his parents and
24 his religion, the defendant would have had to sacrifice a
25 lot to have had the relationship with Hae Min Lee, wouldn't

20
21
22
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I h? 1 A Yeah.
2 Q You still dated her, did you not?
3 A Yeah.
4 Q On a regular basis.
5 A Correct.
6 Q You still continued to hide it from your parents’
7 A Correct.
8 Q And from other Islamic adults?
9 A Correct

10 Q And from anyone who might bring it to your
11 parents' attention.
12 A Correct
13 Q It wasn't enough to stop you from doing what you
14 decided you wanted to do.
15 A Correct
IS Q And I assume based on your answers, Mr■.that
17 it would be fair to say that you cared about this girt?
18 A Yeah.
19 Q To some extent?
20 A Yeah.
21 Q Now, you understood from Adnan himself that his
22 parents didn't agree with him socializing much less dating
23 Hae Min Lee
24 A Correct.
25 Q But that he did it anyway.

MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled. Would the defendant have

4 tcsacriftce a lot to have the relationship with Hae Min
5 Le?

2
3

THE WITNESS: A little What do you mean by
7 sacrifice a lot? The most sacrificing, I think, that was
8 p« in. I guess, was time.

BY MR. URICK:
10 Q What about respect from his parents’
11 A He hid it from them, so, I mean, if he was
1 2 caght. which he was found and, you know, his parents did
1 3 beome aware of it, I mean that's what he sacrificed. I
14 guss, he had the respect.
15 Q Well, how did you feel when you were hiding the
16 oaasional dating you did from your parents?
17 A I had guilt.
18 Q And you never had as long or as deep a
19 rcktionship as the defendant did, did you?

MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection.
THE COURT Overruled.
THE WITNESS: It was long h was six months, 1

6

9

20
21
22
23 gUSS.

BY MR. URICK:
25 Q Did you ever have a physically close relationship
24

Page 142 Page 1
l as he had? 1 A Correct.

2 Q For a long period of time.
3 A Correct.
4 Q And under any occasion where he wasn't concerned
5 about his parents seeing it, that he didn't hide the
6 relationship.
7 A Correct.

MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection.
THE COURT: Overruled.
THE WITNESS: No.
MR. URICK: Thank you, Your Honor.

RE-CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MS. GUTIERREZ:

8 Q Mr. g|i. you've described that during the course
9 of your long relationship that you felt guilty for doing

io it?
1 1 A Yeah.
12 Q And that guilt was occasioned, at least in some
13 respect, because you knew it was against your faith?
14 A Yeah.
15 Q And that it was against your parents' desires?
16 A Correct.
17 Q And that you were hiding it, concealing it. Is
18 that correct?
19 A Correct
20 Q But your guilt was not enough to make you stop
21 seeing the girl that you saw for at least six months, was
22 it?
23 A Correct. I just felt bad about it. I mean, I
24 didn't stop, no.
25 Q But you still saw her, didn't you?_

2
3
4
5
6
7

8 Q And that everybody else other than his parents
9 seemed to know that the relationship existed.

10 A Correct.
11 Q And that it was a deep one.
12 A Correct.
13 Q And that it was an exclusive one.
14 A Correct.
15 Q And it was one in which both participants
16 discussed religion and its tenets.
17 A Correct.
18 Q With each other.
19 A Correct.
20 Q And with others.
21 A Correct.
22 Q And that even though he knew his parents didn’t
23 agree, Adnan continued in this relationship.
24 A Correct.
25 Q And he did it anyway.
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1 A Correct.
2 Q And even when his parents didn't agree with him
3 so«alizing with just females, that Adnan was a very
4 popular young man.
5 A Correct.
6 Q Among Moslems and non-Moslems.
7 A Correct.
8 Q Among girls and boys.
9 A Correct.

10 Q And he continued to socialize even though he knew
11 hisparents didn't agree.
12 A Yes.
13 Q Mr. Ali, they don't give sermons at the Mosque,
14 dohey?
15 A No.
16 Q Sermons are not an Islamic term, are they?
17 A No.
18 5 There aren't priests that give sermons to the
19 Islanic faithful who come to pray.
20 A No.
21 I? And in regard to Ramadan or any other time that
22 thefaithful come to pray, people aren't required to come
23 at aspecific time or be barred?
24 A Correct.
25 9 In fact, people because of lots of things,

1 Mosque?
2 A Yes.
3 Q And during Ramadan, most of them attend almost on
4 a daily basis.
5 A Correct.
6 Q To pray.
7 A Correct.
8 Q That if all of them attended, they might all be
9 praying at a different pace.

10 A Correct.
11 Q And praying a different prayer
12 A Correct.
13 Q And holding themselves in a different physical
14 posture.
15 A Correct.
16 Q Because they would be at a different place in the
17 prayers.
18 A Correct.
19 Q And none of that is frowned upon, is it?
20 A No.
21 Q If the faithful can't get there at exactly the
22 start of the evening prayer, they are encouraged to come as
23 soon as they can, are they not?
24 A Yes.
25 Q And if they can't be there for the whole time, or

Page 146 Page 148
1 conduct the whole prayer, they are encouraged to come as
2 often and for as long as they can, can they not?
3 A Yes.
4 Q And, in fact, they do, do they not?
5 A Yes.
6 Q There's nothing unusual about faithful Moslems
7 coming in and out of the Mosque all around and near prayer
8 time.
9 A Correct.

10 Q And for some to stay for the whole time.
11 A Correct.
12 Q And some to stay for a little bit and then leave.
13 A Correct.
14 Q And that is not seen not only during Ramadan but
15 any other time as being disruptive to the remaining
16 faithful?
17 A No.
18 Q The faithful encourage each other to be there
19 however long they can.
20 A Yes.
21 Q And under whatever circumstances they can.
22 A Correct.

l inebding their own work schedules or their family
2 schtdules, come in and out of the Mosque during the
3 appopriate broad time category?

A. Correct.
9 And so people would arrive even after a whole

6 other group of people has been there and already started
7 prajing.

4
5

A Correct.
Q And that lots of times people are praying, and

10 they join the prayers as they're going on.
A Correct.
Q And sometimes people pray themselves at their own

8
9

11
12
13 pact

A Correct.
Q Even though other Moslems are praying together at

16 a different pace.
A Correct.
<) And prayer, because depending upon what prayer

19 you do and how many repetitions you do of it, requires
20 different postures that change throughout the prayer.

A Correct.
() And from prayer to prayer.
A Correct.
<J And so within the Mosque — and incidentally,

25 then are about a thousand families that belong to this

14
15

17
18

21
22

MS. GUTIERREZ: Thank you. Nothing further.
MR. UR1CK: Just briefly.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION

2323
2424
25
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BY MR. URICK:

2 Q Was the defendant's relationship with Ilae Min Lee
3 evr the subject of discussion, either formal or informal,
4 wihin the Mosque9

Q And when you answered the question about the
2 penalty in the religion, would it be a fair statement to
3 say that in Islam, in the religion, that the faithful
4 Islamics believe that judgment is for God, between God ano
5 a faithful Moslem?

11

MS. GUTIERREZ: Objection
THE COURT: Overruled Yes or no, was it the

7 subject of discussion to your knowledge?
THE WITNESS: No.
THE COURT: Next question
BY MR URICK

1 1 Q Now, what is your understanding of the penalty in
12 a »eiety ruled by Islamic rules —

MS GUTIERREZ. Objection.
14 Q -- for premarital sex9

THE COURT: Overruled.
MS GUTIERREZ: Judge, may we approach the bench?
THE COURT : No, you may not, and 1 understand and

18 noc your objection for the record.
MS. GUTIERREZ: Thank you.
THE COURT The door to this line of questioning

21 is tpen. You may ask the question again.

§Y_MFL_yRlC!G
23 Q What is your understanding of the penalty within
24 a ountry ruled by Islamic law for premarital sex?

THE COURT: Now that objection is sustained.

5
6 A Yes.
7 Q And that other Moslems have nothing to do with
8 rendering judgment9
9 A Yes.

10 Q Or imposing any sanctions9
11 A Yes.

6

8
9

10

MS. GUTIERREZ: Okay Thank you
THE COURT. Anything further9
MS- GUTIERREZ: No, Your Honor Thank you.
MR. URICK No. Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: May this witness be excused from the

12
13 13

14
15 15
16 16

17 State?17
MR. URICK Yes.
THE COURT: And excused from the defense ’
MS GUTIERREZ: Yes.

18
19 19

2020
THE COURT: May this witness be released from21

22 subpoenaes?22
MS. GUTIERREZ: Yes.
THE COURT: At this time, I must advise you that

25 you may not discuss your testimony with anyone who has y<*'

23
24

25

Page 150 Page L_
I because that was not your first question Your first
2 question was, what is the penalty within the religion.
3 Nov, the second question is, in a country. And you have
4 notlaid a foundation that this witness knows what a

1 to testify in this case, who may be a witness, but you tin:

2 released from the summons at this time So, you would be
3 free to go, but because you are a sequestered witness, you
4 can't discuss it with anyone who has yet to testify, bui
5 you’re welcome to sit in the court because they have
6 released you from your summons. Do you understand9

THE WITNESS: YeS.

5 penalty is in a country. So, until you lay that
6 foundation, that question is sustained.

BY MR. URICK:
8 Q What is your understanding of the penalty within
9 theLslamic religion for premarital sex?

10 X Thai is not allowed
1 1 Q What would be the penalty for it?
12 x We actually say that should be taken care of by
13 God. It's not for us to discuss or, you know, chastise
14 y Have you studied countries ruled by Islamic laws?

vts GUTIERREZ: Objection.
THE COURT: Sustained
BY MR. URICK:

18 Q Had the defendant ever told you that Hae Min Lee
19 had started dating another man?
20 x No.

77
THE COURT: You are free to go at this time.

9 Thank you very much. I know that there is an exhibit that
10 is still on the witness table, and I'd ask counsel — thank
11 you very much. Please pass that forward.

I note that it is now 5:30, and we are going to
13 recess for the day 1 understand from my clerk that we
14 have one case on the docket for tomorrow, is that correct,
15 Mr White?

8

12

15
THE CLERK Yes, one case.
THE COURT: One case, which means that hopefully

18 we will get started somewhere between quarter of 9:00,
19 quarter of 10:00 and 10:00 o'clock. So, I'm going IO ask
20 you to tomorrow to go to the Jury Commissioner's office
21 between 9:00 and 9:30 and be paid. And then I'm going to
22 ask that you be in the jury room no later than 9:30. As
23 soon as I'm finished my docket of one case, I will ask ihai
24 you come out so we can resume this case.

And I advise you for tomorrow evening, we will

1616
1717

MR. URICK: No further questions.
REÿROSS_EXAMINATTgN

BY_MS_GUIIERRHZ,
Q Was Hae Min Lee ever your concern, Mrj
A No.

21
22
23

■?24
2525
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